Scanned from the Jubilee Cookery Book compiled by the Women of the Upper Waitotara valley as a Souvenir of the Sixtieth Anniversary of the Upper valley Schools, Makakaho Junction (Marohema) and Taumatatahi.

HISTORY OF THE SCHOOLS.

This year is the diamond jubilee of the Schools of the Upper Waitotara District, Taumatatahi, now in recess, and Marohema, now rather unpoetically called Makakaho Junction.

Early in the year 1898 Mr. William Van Asch thought that there were a considerable number of children in the district that were of school age. He contacted the Education Board

about it. The Board was moderately helpful, promising to pay a teacher if a suitable local person could be found willing to teach the children. A local settler, Mr. J. G. Haddow, who

besides farming was studying law, was persuaded to act as teacher.

There was a split shingle building on his farm not in use so school was opened there in September, 1898. The settlers soon built a little school a mile further up the road at Taumatatahi. This was nearer for most children.

In the meantime the settlers from Ngamatapouri to Kaimanuka got busy and on December 16, 1898, school was opened in a private house at Kaimanuka.  Mr. Haddow now divided his

time between the two schools teaching alternate days at each school. Soon the settlers built a second school at the upper end of the Marohema flat. This was the Marohema School.

For seven and a half years Mr. Haddow, riding to and fro on his grey horse Doctor, taught both schools. The valley was by 1905 quite a flourishing community with thirty six or more

children living in the Taumatatahi area alone. But as the years went by many of the families of this area found their sections too small for a living and one by one sold out. Several of these holdings are now amalgamated to form Te Pate. In the meantime the Makakaho Valley had been developing and so with the decline of Taumatatahi, the Education Board in 1914 moved both Marohema and Taumatatahi buildings to the present site, and a full time school called Marohema, was permanently established there. For those who are interested the

present woodshed (shown at the rear of the Makakaho Junction School in the front of the book) is partly made of the remains of the old school from Marohema flat.

Time passed and Taumatatahi area having again a number of children the Education Board built there a very modern school for that time. However, it was only used for a short

time before it was closed again.

In 1928 the Marohema building got burnt down, actually during the school hours. The teacher, Miss Brown, and the pupils managed to save almost the entire contents of the school. (Not the earliest log, unfortunately!) This loss of the building was not an unmixed evil for the inconvenient old school was replaced by the good building standing idle for many years at Taumatatahi. This is still the main part of the present school which of course has been enlarged and improved.

In 1934 a new crop of children had appeared at Taumatatahi and a prefabricated school was placed there. This school has been closed for eight years for now there is only one child

and a baby living in that area.

Of the original pioneer families four are still well represented in the district and have provided through the years seventy two pupils and six teachers for the schools. Most of

these intend coming to the Jubilee celebrations.

For a long time the teachers were girls, who were snapped up promptly for wives by the local lads, much to the dismay of the Education Board. For some years now the teachers have been men. Five years ago the Education Board bought a local house for a school residence which is now proving a great asset. Instead of having a single man with home and interests elsewhere, we now have a family man who, besides being probably more experienced has his home and interests here and is, we find, more settled and happy to take a full part in the life of the district.

It is unfortunate that some of the Marohema records were lost when the school was burnt down and all the early records of Taumatatahi disappeared when that school was moved. It is

hoped therefore, that any inaccuracies in this account will be forgiven.
YESTERDAY — TODAY

An earlier article has shown us how, as the district was gradually settled, the need for educational facilities grew. We have progressed a lot over the last sixty years, always with our school as the focal point of the community.

Our road is now (supposedly) all weather and our produce and stock are all transported by truck instead of the wagons, pack horses and drives of yore. There are airstrips on many

farms and old boys John Larsen and brothers Jim and Bob Larsen use light aircraft for their communication with the 'outside.' Our farming methods are now dominated by tractors

and aeroplanes and our social life by motor cars or four-wheel drive vehicles in really bad conditions.

Despite this progress we are still isolated by today's standards. We have no hydro-electric power, our access is poor and our telephone system obsolete. The fact that most farm's are still owned by direct descendants of the original families shows that some of their pioneer spirit has been passed on to their sons and grandsons.

Our isolation has made it difficult to get permanent teachers as the long roll of teachers shows. Even today the school is classified as one of New Zealand's 119 'very remote

schools.' Not only is the school remote to the teachers but also to many of the pupils, some families being as many as nine miles away. With no school transport available the 'horse

paddock' at the school, although vacant at present will be used again.

Much has been done in the last sixty years. There is much to do in the next sixty.

